
Safety and Licensing Committee

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers, 6th Floor5:30 PMWednesday, January 8, 2025

1. Call meeting to order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll call of membership

4. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

24-1601 Safety and Licensing Committee Minutes from 12/11/2024

 

S&L Minutes 12-11-24.pdfAttachments:

5. Public Hearing/Appearances

6. Action Items

24-1126 Operator License for Kelly Arndt.

Kelly Arndt Application.pdf

Kelly Arndt Clerk Letter.pdf

Kelly Arndt PD Letter.pdf

Kelly Arndt Appeal Memo.pdf

UPDATE  Operator License Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

Kelly Arndt was present and requested the item be held until the next regularly 

scheduled meeting on January 8, 2025.

24-1496 Operator License for Katherine Neubert.

Katherine Neubert Application.pdf

Katherine Neubert Clerk's Letter.pdf

Katherine Neubert denial letter.pdf

Attachments:

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 1/3/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25301
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=48b8c805-bdea-45b5-baa8-1ea1998db1b9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24826
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6c150880-f2f8-4ef2-8747-9fae812ef574.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f2778100-9dc4-4deb-b6b5-c68eca0a4511.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ba0f6d35-a20a-4470-ab1d-352dd7d67715.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3b34b21b-a691-4fdc-bb4a-c89da707fc8f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=689bb799-b2df-4f00-991e-67c5635599ea.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25196
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=69aecdf9-95f9-400a-8aa2-7c6f6a920455.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a2008f82-3fe2-4784-8aad-b797d4f510c9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9bd21881-3712-4c32-8544-7ab27ab274c5.pdf


January 8, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1528 Class "B" Fermented Malt Beverage and Reserve "Class B" Liquor 

License Revocation Hearing for BT & Dave, LLC - Theodore V. Suess, 

Agent.

 

Speakeasy Ultra Lounge Complaint & Summons 12.2.24.pdf

Speakeasy Ultra Lounge Affidavit of Service 12.3.24.pdf

Alcohol Demerits and Revocations.pdf

Steven Wells APD Report 3.3.23 Redacted.pdf

Steven Wells Signed Criminal Complaint 11.30.23.pdf

JoC - Wisconsin V Steven Wells Jr 5.21.24.pdf

Council Minutes from 8.16.23.pdf

Speakeasy Stipulation 8.2023 Signed.pdf

Speakeasy Surrender Lic. Email 12-10-24.pdf

SPEAKEASY ULTRA LOUNGE REPORT 12.11.24.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

Theodore Suess was present and addressed the committee and did not deny the 

complaint.

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

The Motion to approve the report and proceed with revocation of the license 

failed 2/3.

24-1530 The Safety and Licensing Committee may go into closed session pursuant 

to State Statute §19.85(1)(a) for the purpose of deliberating the revocation 

of an alcohol license and then reconvene into open session.

 

24-0420 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for 

Delaires LLC d/b/a Delaire's, David Boulanger, Agent, located at 823 W. 

College Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments.

Delaire's.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve_Liquor.4.10.24.REDACTED.pdf

Delaire's Attachment.pdf

Documents distributed by Alder Van Zeeland 10.23.24.pdf

APD Delaire's letter to S&L 11.27.24.docx

OEO to Appleton City Clerk re Holding Licensing Hearing - Delaire's LLC.pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

10/9/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

10/16/24 Common Council referred to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 1/3/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25228
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9a0ac48d-320e-4603-b2a5-969135726470.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4a771f7b-94d2-46ef-9261-a9ee4520a680.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b7280eef-983d-4dc5-ad65-51167bfe6f17.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=aae9d5c1-82ca-4895-b978-515bbfc7f232.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=56e515ad-2d39-4d17-9c8a-fd6386be86c4.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8aba464a-9495-4fd9-a374-4756b3f19947.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dcbb61b0-05d5-44ef-8782-3f37c9bd37a0.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=353b5e28-18ad-47ab-82c2-e4787fa0be11.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=920bbf27-1c4b-48d8-a087-1597b41abd08.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=334c8350-0328-417b-9b5f-fe2121f3fe70.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25230
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=24121
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=573aade9-ab87-4fea-9b8c-135b6b7f7f18.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=906a7738-d3f7-475c-810f-5d6cb437c299.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=780b90c5-b9d3-401a-9efe-c475e4260c40.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42a97bff-78e1-4f20-9e0c-e691687e47c9.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b345254e-5ed8-4848-b7fd-7fb4800b92c7.pdf


January 8, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

10/23/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

12/11/24 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

held

24-1611 Secondhand Article Dealer License renewal application for T&S Sports 

d/b/a Play It Again Sports, Michael Milloy, Agent, located at 611 W 

Northland Ave, contingent upon approval from the Health department. 

Play It Again Sports.Secondhand Article Renewal.12.10.24.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

24-1604 Temporary Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Wine License application for 

Sacred Heart Church, Dave Erickson, Person in Charge, located at 222 E. 

Fremont St, for Winterfest event on February 22, 2025 from 5:00 p.m. to 

9:00 p.m., contingent upon approval from all departments.

Sacred Heart Church.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer_Wine.Winterfest.2.22.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

24-1603 Temporary Class "B" Beer License application for Building for Kids 

Children's Museum, Oliver Zornow, Person in Charge, located at 100 W. 

College Ave, for Building for Grown-Ups event on February 1, 2025 from 

6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m., contingent upon approval from all departments.

Building for Kids Childrens Museum.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer.Building for Grown Ups.2.1.25.REDACTED.pdfAttachments:

7. Information Items

24-1565 Gold Cross Ambulance Annual Review

11-05-24_Memo_GCA_Annual_Review.pdf

Shared_Services_and_Operating_Agreement_2024_Annual_Review.pdf

Attachments:

24-1634 Alcohol Establishment Demerit Point Violations:

Broken Tree Pizza - 201 S Riverheath Way

-Dispense Alcohol to Minor: 80 points

-No licensed Operator on Premises: 40 points

Total demerit points: 120

Mr. Frogs - 409 W College Ave

-Underage Person(s) on Premises: 80 points

-Dispense Alcohol to Minor: 80 points

Total demerit points: 160

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 1/3/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25311
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3cb934e9-7948-409d-8562-bc38efba2c7a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25304
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e3e20c79-45e7-47a4-88f5-8e478168d0af.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25303
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2ec1f8f7-885d-4ea7-afe9-e5a1117f9cd2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25265
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=91fd3eea-ec3f-424b-93c3-ba16fac154d5.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ebfd16b0-5f8b-4f95-a0cf-36b3d895fb49.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25334


January 8, 2025Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting Agenda - Final

24-1602 Director's Report

1. City Clerk

2. Fire Chief

3. Police Chief

- Hiring Update

 

8. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this 

meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request 

and if Feasible.

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 1/3/2025

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=25302
















 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 8/09/2024 

 

RE: Police Department’s Recommendation for Denial of Kelly Arndt’s Bartender 

Renewal License Application 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

The police department is requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee recommend to the 

Common Council to deny Kelly Arndt’s application for a bartender renewal license based upon 

her criminal and / or arrest record, her unpardoned felony conviction(s), and her status as a 

“habitual law offender.”   

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(2)(b) and (3)(a), it is not employment discrimination for a 

licensing agency to deny an applicant based on an arrest or conviction record where the 

circumstances of the conviction substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular 

licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(a)1., no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to an individual with an arrest or conviction record where the circumstances of the 

record(s) substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(b), no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to a “habitual law offender” where the circumstances of the habitual law offenses 

substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Also pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(c), if the licensing agency refuses to license an 

individual based upon arrest or conviction record, the applicant is allowed an opportunity to 

show “evidence of rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity,” unless the 

conviction(s) are for “exempt offenses.”  Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(d) provides the following 

options that the applicant may produce to conclusively demonstrate their rehabilitation and 

fitness from a given conviction: 

A copy of the local, state, or federal release document; and either  

(1) a copy of the relevant department of corrections document showing completion of 

probation, extended supervision, or parole; or  



(2) other evidence that at least one year has elapsed since release from any local, state, or 

federal correctional institution without subsequent conviction of a crime along with 

evidence showing compliance with all terms and conditions of probation, extended 

supervision, or parole. 

Additionally, the licensing agency must consider any of the following evidence if presented by 

the individual: 

(1) Evidence of the nature and seriousness of any offense of which he or she was 

convicted. 

(2) Evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense, including mitigating 

circumstances or social conditions surrounding the commission of the offense. 

(3) The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 

(4) The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

(5) Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

(6) All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present fitness presented. 

 

 

STATEMENT ON SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

 

As part of any denial of licensing, the police department must determine if crimes are 

substantially related to the sale of alcohol.  During the 2023-2024 fiscal licensing year, Ms. 

Arndt was arrested and formally charged with the following: 

 

2023CF000224 in Calumet County 

9/26/2023 

- Possess w/Intent-Cocaine (>15-40 grams), a Class D Felony 

 

2024CF000338 in Outagamie County 

4/15/2024 

- Bail Jumping, a Class H Felony 

- Possession of Cocaine, a criminal Misdemeanor offense 

 

While Ms. Arndt held an Operator/Bartender license during the 2023-2024 fiscal year, she was 

arrested for cocaine related offenses twice.  The first arrest involved a substantial amount of 

cocaine and pertaining to drug dealing activity.  Ms. Arndt was arrested for Possession of 

Cocaine a few months later and also violated the conditions of her bond by committing a new 

crime.  Additionally, the renewal Operator/Bartender license application clearly instructs the 

applicant to:  

 

“List any pending charges, citations, tickets, and all convictions since last license 

application in or out of state.  Failure to provide complete answers may result in a denial of 

your application.” 

 

Directly under that section, Ms. Arndt failed to disclose her two recent drug arrests.  Ms. Arndt 

has displayed poor decision-making skills during this last year while she held a City of Appleton 

Operator/Bartender license.  While working at a bar, Ms. Arndt will undoubtedly come into 



contact with individuals who are in a vulnerable, intoxicated state.  Some of these individuals 

may suffer from addiction, whether it’s to alcohol or drugs.  Ms. Arndt must show the ability to 

make sound decisions when it comes to knowing when to stop serving a patron.  Her being 

arrested twice in the last year for drug possession/drug dealing shows she does not possess the 

proper decision-making skills to responsibly serve alcohol to members of the public.  Also, bars 

and taverns have frequently been locations where drugs are bought/sold/exchanged based on my 

experience as a police officer.  Given Ms. Arndt’s recent troubles with possessing and selling 

cocaine, granting her an Operator/Bartender license would only increase the likelihood of her 

reoffending.   

 

Based upon the information provided, it is the Appleton Police Department’s opinion that Kelly 

Arndt’s Operator/Bartender’s renewal license application be denied. 

 

 

Very Respectfully:  

 

 

Lt. Ben Goodin 

Appleton Police Department     

 



CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  September 23, 2024 
 
RE:  Operator Licensing Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt 
 

 
Kelly Arndt has applied for an Operator License and is appealing the initial denial of that 
application.  Below is a summary of the relevant Chapter 125 eligibility requirements and an 
analysis of their application. 
 

Summary 
 
Insufficient grounds currently exist to conclude that the applicant is statutorily ineligible for the 
license renewal being sought.  Renewal should therefore be granted at this time. 
 
As the applicant’s pending criminal matters conclude, it remains possible that the situation will 
change.  If or when sufficient evidence becomes available to demonstrate that the applicant is 
no longer eligible for the license she currently seeks or then holds, revocation proceedings 
would be available and appropriate.   
  

§125.04(5) Licensing Requirements 
 
According to §125.04(5)(a)1, in order to be granted a license or permit under Wisconsin Statutes 
Chapter 125, the applicant may not have an arrest or conviction record.  This prohibition is 
subject to the requirements of various statutes prohibiting certain types of employment 
discrimination, which will be discussed in relevant part below.  These statutes are §111.321, 
§111.322, §111.335 and §125.12 (1) (b). 
 
§125.04(5)(b) states that “No license or permit related to alcohol beverages may, subject to 
§111.321, 111.322 and 111.335, be issued under this chapter to any person who has habitually 
been a law offender or has been convicted of a felony unless the person has been duly pardoned.”   
 
In summary, §125.04(5) prohibits the issuance of alcohol related licenses under chapter 125 to 
anybody with an arrest or conviction record, anybody with an unpardoned felony conviction, or 

http://www.appleton.org/


anybody “who has habitually been a law offender,” regardless of whether any arrests or 
convictions exist (see State ex rel. Smith v. City of Oak Creek, 139 Wis. 2d 788, 407 N.W.2d 901 
(1987)), unless failing to grant that license would constitute prohibited discrimination. 
 

§125.04(3)(j) – False Application Information 
 
It is a violation of the law to provide false information on an application for any type of alcohol 
beverage license.  §125.04(3)(j) provides that the penalty for any person who knowingly provides 
materially false information on an application for a license or permit under Chapter 125 may be 
required to forfeit not more than $1,000.   
 
A review of the general licensing requirements as well as the bases for revocations, suspensions, 
and refusals to issue or renew licenses reveals what may be an unexpected fact.  The provision 
of false, misleading, or incomplete information on an alcohol license application does not, in and 
of itself, provide an independent justification to deny, revoke, or suspend an alcohol beverage 
license under Chapter 125.   
 
Whether this is intentional or an oversight by the legislature is not known.  It is undoubtedly a 
proper consideration in a retail licensing application decision in situations where the licensing 
authority has more discretion.  However, operator licenses are required by statute to be granted 
if the applicant is eligible for the license applied for.  Absent an undiscovered statutory exclusion 
that might apply to someone who knowingly provides false information on their operator license 
application, doing so does not make someone statutorily ineligible for an operator license by 
itself. 
 

Prohibited Discrimination 
 

§111.321 – Prohibited Bases of Discrimination 
 
Arrest or conviction (among other bases not relevant to consideration here) are not permitted to 
be used as a basis for employment discrimination by a licensing agency. 
 

§111.335 – Arrest or Conviction Record; Exceptions and Special Cases 
 
§111.335(3)(a)1 states that it is not employment discrimination because of a conviction record 
to refuse to license an individual where that person has been convicted of “any felony, 
misdemeanor, or other offense the circumstances of which substantially relate to the 
circumstances of the particular job or licensed activity.”  In evaluating the existence of a 
substantial relationship, it is the circumstances that provide the opportunity for criminal 
behavior, the reaction to responsibility, or the character traits of the applicant that are the proper 
considerations.  It is not relevant whether the applicant has the ability to perform the work to an 
employer’s standards.  (See Milwaukee Cnty. v. Lab. & Indus. Rev. Comm'n, 139 Wis. 2d 805, 407 
N.W.2d 908 (1987)). 
 



Regarding pending charges, it is considered employment discrimination for a licensing agency to 
refuse to license an individual or suspend an individual from licensing “solely because the 
individual is subject to a pending criminal charge.”  The exception to this general rule is when the 
circumstances of the charge substantially relate to the circumstances of the licensed activity in 
question, and the offense is either an exempt offense or a violent crime against a child.  (See 
§111.335(2)(b) and (4)(a)).  However, even though the fact of a pending charge may not be the 
sole basis for denial, this does not appear to prohibit the underlying conduct from being 
considered, to the extent it can be proved with sufficient evidence.  
 
Each offense must be evaluated under the above criteria for determination of whether or not it 
is substantially related to the activity for which a license is sought.  Any arrest (subject to the 
above), conviction, or other offense which is substantially related to the licensed activity is to be 
considered in the licensing decision. 
 

Applicability to Kelly Arndt 
 
Ms. Arndt currently has criminal court matters pending in Calumet County and in Outagamie 
County.  As of this writing, both matters are pending.  Neither matter alleges an offense that 
would be considered exempt.  Therefore, the fact that either of these matters are pending is 
not something which can be properly considered as a sole basis for denial.   
 
The facts leading to an arrest remain a proper consideration when determining if an applicant is 
someone “who has habitually been a law offender.”  To be considered a “habitual law 
offender,” one need not be convicted of or even arrested for a crime.  Findings of guilt by a 
court are the typical way in which this is demonstrated, but they are not the only way in which 
law violations can be shown.  The full scope of the evidence in the pending criminal matters is 
not generally available at this point in Ms. Arndt’s proceedings.  Whether this impacts the 
ability to determine someone’s status as a “habitual law offender” must be determined on a 
case-by-case basis.   
 
In at least one of Ms. Arndt’s pending matters, a recent change in the procedural posture of the 
case indicates that there is at least the possibility of additional relevant factual developments 
before it is concluded.  The posture of the cases at the time of Lt. Goodin’s memorandum 
recommending the denial of the application was premised upon the (then) well-founded belief 
that the applicant was statutorily ineligible in fact, and that this fact could be sufficiently 
demonstrated to the Committee and Council.  The change in the posture of the criminal 
matters is something that occurred after the original memorandum submitted by Lt. Goodin.  It 
is not something he could have predicted based on the status of the cases at that time.  
Predictable or not, the change does appear to now preclude a fair and full consideration of the 
facts at this time.   
 
There is sufficient evidence by which it might be shown that the applicant violated the law by 
providing materially false information on her renewal application.  This does not, by itself, allow 
for the conclusion that the applicant is a “habitual law offender,” or render her statutorily 



ineligible for the license applied for.  It remains a consideration with respect to future license 
renewals, new applications, and other eligibility determinations under Chapter 125.  
 
Based on the above, it is premature to conclude whether or not Ms. Arndt is a “habitual law 
offender” and therefore ineligible for the license applied for.  In the absence of a determination 
that she is a “habitual law offender,” Ms. Arndt remains eligible for licensure, at least with 
respect to that specific qualification.   
 

Conclusion 
 
The defendant’s application should be granted, as it cannot be shown that she is ineligible at 
this time.   
 
The outcome of Ms. Arndt’s pending criminal matters remains to be seen both legally and 
factually.  Both could potentially have impacts upon whether Ms. Arndt remains statutorily 
eligible for an operator’s license.  The situation can and will be monitored.  Changes to eligibility 
would be addressed in accordance with Wisconsin Statutes §125.12, which governs 
revocations, suspensions, and refusals to issue or renew alcohol beverage licenses under 
Chapter 125. 



CITY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI 54911  
p: 920.832.6423 
f: 920.832.5962 

www.appleton.org 

 

 
TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee, Common Council  
 
From:  ACA Zak Buruin 
 
Date:  December 13, 2024 
 
RE:  UPDATE – Operator License Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt 
 

 
Kelly Arndt has applied for an Operator License and is appealing the denial of that application.  
Below is a summary of the relevant Chapter 125 eligibility requirements and an analysis of their 
application in this case, accounting for updated information brought up during the meeting of 
the Safety and Licensing Committee Meeting on December 11, 2024.  
 
This memorandum does not include sections or analysis which remains unchanged from the 
original submission. This memorandum is a supplement and should be read in conjunction with 
the memorandum previously submitted.   
 

Summary 
 
Ms. Arndt’s recent conviction leaves her ineligible for the license sought.  This ineligibility is 
subject to her ability to provide competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation.  It will be up to 
the Committee and Council to weigh that evidence and utilize sound discretion to determine 
whether any such evidence is competent to show sufficient rehabilitation.  If so, the license must 
be granted.  If not, it may not be granted.   
 
It remains premature to determine what impact Calumet County case 23CF224 will have upon 
Ms. Arndt’s future eligibility for licensure.   
  

Consideration of Rehabilitation 
 
§111.335(4)(c)1 requires that if a license is denied based upon §111.335(3)(a)1 (as discussed in 
the preceding section), the licensing agency typically has two further obligations.  It must state 
the reasons for denial in writing, including a statement of how the circumstances of the offense(s) 
relate to the licensed activity.  It must also allow the person to show evidence of rehabilitation.  
According to §111.335(4)(c)1.b, if the individual “shows competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity under par. (d), the licensing agency may 

http://www.appleton.org/


not refuse to license the individual or bar or terminate the individual from licensing based on that 
conviction.” (Emphasis added). 
 
The statute specifically notes documentation that can demonstrate rehabilitation “on that 
conviction.”  As such, rehabilitation is to be considered with respect to each offense individually, 
rather than the applicant in totality.  Where denial is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and competent 
evidence of sufficient rehabilitation shown, that offense may not be considered as part of a denial 
decision. 
 

Competent Evidence of Sufficient Rehabilitation 
 
For denials based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation may be 
shown.  As indicated above in §111.335(4)(c)1.b, where such evidence is shown, the related 
conviction may not be the basis for a denial of a license. 
 
§111.335(4)(d)1 provides two forms of evidence which are statutorily required to be considered 
“competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation,” and therefore must be accepted by the 
licensing agency as such.  §111.335(4)(d)1.a. allows one to provide certified documentation of 
honorable discharge from the US armed forces following the otherwise disqualifying conviction.  
This documentation is no longer sufficient if there is a criminal conviction following the discharge 
date.2   
 
§111.335(4)(d)1.b, allows the applicant to provide documentation of their release from custody 
and either completion of probation or release from custody and compliance with all terms and 
conditions of release, be it extended supervision, probation, or parole.3   
 
Where neither of the above exists, §111.335(4)(d)2 provides additional documentary evidence 
that may be provided that the licensing agency is bound to consider, but that it is not required to 
accept conclusively as sufficient evidence of rehabilitation.  Evidence which the agency is 
required to consider include:  

a. evidence of the seriousness of any offense of which he / she was convicted. 
b. evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense including mitigating circumstances 

or social conditions surrounding the offense. 
c. The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 
d. The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

 
1 Denials under other provisions may be subject to other requirements. 
2 From a practical standpoint, honorable discharge from the armed forces is not related to any particular offense.  
This section, in conjunction with §111.335(4)(c)1.b. could be interpreted as effectively removing any criminal 
offenses prior to honorable discharge from licensing consideration.  This would be more akin to evaluating the 
rehabilitation of the person rather than specific offenses, which is not what the other related statutes call for.  This 
arguable inconsistency what my prior, more rigid analysis was based upon.     
3 Periods of supervision are attributable to specific offenses, allowing for consideration of individual offenses as 
§111.335(4)(c)1.b contemplates. 



e. Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 
applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

f. All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and fitness presented. 
 
Based upon the above, where a denial of a licensed is based upon §111.335(3)(a)1, and there is 
no evidence presented that is statutorily defined as “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation” for a particular offense, it is up to the licensing agency to determine whether the 
other documentary evidence available constitutes “competent evidence of sufficient 
rehabilitation and fitness to perform the licensed activity.”   
 
 

Applicability to Kelly Arndt 
 
Since my original memorandum on this subject was submitted, Ms. Arndt has been convicted of 
Possession of Cocaine, a misdemeanor offense, in Outagamie County case 24CF338 on November 
12, 2024.  Additionally, one count of Felony Bail Jumping was dismissed but read into the record 
for consideration at sentencing.  Sentence was withheld and Ms. Arndt was placed on probation 
for a period of 12 months.   
 
If it is determined that this offense is substantially related to the activity to be licensed, Ms. Arndt 
is ineligible for a license under Chapter 125 unless she is able to provide competent evidence of 
rehabilitation.  There is a basis to conclude that the offense is substantially related to the licensed 
activity in that it involves the irresponsible and unlawful usage and possession of intoxicating 
substances, particuarly while under enhanced legal obligations.  The enhanced legal obligation 
comes from her status on a criminal bond versus being a holder of an Operator’s license, but it is 
an additional aspect of substantial relation between the offense and the licensed activity.      
 
In light of the time since this conviction, it is not possible for her to demonstrate successful 
completion of probation or a year of elapsed time since release with compliance with all 
conditions of supervision.  There is no indication that she might show honorable discharge from 
the US military since the conviction.  She appears unable to satisfy either of the showings that 
the Committee and Council would be required to accept as competent evidence of rehabilitation.   
 
Absent either of the above showings, Ms. Arndt would only be eligible for licensure if she were 
to provide sufficient evidence to convince the Committee and Council, in their discretion, that 
she has been sufficiently rehabilitated to be licensed.  This is an evaluation that is to be made by 
the Committee and Council, utilizing their best evaluation of the relevant information available, 
including but not limited to any of the information under §111.335(4)(d)2 and noted above.  
 
Ms. Arndt’s additional criminal matter in Calumet County remains pending, with a Jury Trial 
scheduled for April of 2025.  The evaluation of this matter has not changed since my prior 
memorandum.  When that matter is adjudicated, it can be determined what additional impact it 
might have on Ms. Arndt’s eligibility for licensure.   
 



 
Conclusion 

 
Ms. Arndt’s recent conviction leaves her ineligible for the license sought.  This ineligibility is 
subject to her ability to provide competent evidence of sufficient rehabilitation.  It will be up to 
the Committee and Council to weigh that evidence and utilize sound discretion to determine 
whether any such evidence is competent to show sufficient rehabilitation.  If so, the license must 
be granted.  If not, it may not be granted.   
 
It remains premature to determine what impact Calumet County case 23CF224 will have upon 
Ms. Arndt’s future eligibility for licensure.   







 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 10/10/2024 

 

RE: Police Department’s Recommendation for Denial of Katherine Neubert’s Bartender 

License Application 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

The police department is requesting that the Safety and Licensing Committee recommend to the 

Common Council to deny Katherine Neubert’s application for a bartender license.   

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(2)(b) and (3)(a), it is not employment discrimination for a 

licensing agency to deny an applicant based on an arrest or conviction record where the 

circumstances of the conviction substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular 

licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(a)1., no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to an individual with an arrest or conviction record where the circumstances of the 

record(s) substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. §125.04(5)(b), no license or permit related to alcohol beverages may be 

issued to a “habitual law offender” where the circumstances of the habitual law offenses 

substantially relate to the circumstances of the particular licensed activity. 

 

Also pursuant to Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(c), if the licensing agency refuses to license an 

individual based upon arrest or conviction record, the applicant is allowed an opportunity to 

show “evidence of rehabilitation and fitness to engage in the licensed activity,” unless the 

conviction(s) are for “exempt offenses.”  Wis. Stat. §111.335(4)(d) provides the following 

options that the applicant may produce to conclusively demonstrate their rehabilitation and 

fitness from a given conviction: 

A copy of the local, state, or federal release document; and either  

(1) a copy of the relevant department of corrections document showing completion of 

probation, extended supervision, or parole; or  

(2) other evidence that at least one year has elapsed since release from any local, state, or 

federal correctional institution without subsequent conviction of a crime along with 



evidence showing compliance with all terms and conditions of probation, extended 

supervision, or parole. 

Additionally, the licensing agency must consider any of the following evidence if presented by 

the individual, though none are required to be accepted as conclusive proof of rehabilitation: 

(1) Evidence of the nature and seriousness of any offense of which he or she was 

convicted. 

(2) Evidence of all circumstances relative to the offense, including mitigating 

circumstances or social conditions surrounding the commission of the offense. 

(3) The age of the individual at the time the offense was committed. 

(4) The length of time that has elapsed since the offense was committed. 

(5) Letters of reference by persons who have been in contact with the individual since the 

applicant’s release from any local, state, or federal correctional institution. 

(6) All other relevant evidence of rehabilitation and present fitness presented. 

 

 

STATEMENT ON SUBSTANTIAL RELATIONSHIP 

 

As part of any denial of licensing, the police department must determine if crimes are 

substantially related to the sale of alcohol.  Ms. Neubert is a habitual law offender based on the 

following convictions: 

 

Operating While Intoxicated (3rd) in Outagamie County case # 2022CT000244. 

 

Operating While Intoxicated (2nd) in Outagamie County case # 2013CT000150. 

 

Operating While Intoxicated (1st) in Outagamie County case # 2011TR002386. 

 

These three Operating While Intoxicated convictions are substantially related to the sale of 

alcohol for several reasons.  Ms. Neubert has shown a pattern of poor decision-making by getting 

arrested for Operating While Intoxicated in 2011, 2012 (convicted in 2013) and again in 2021 

(convicted in 2022). 

 

Drunk driving is a serious offense and a major problem not only in Wisconsin but across the 

entire country.  Ms. Neubert has not shown the ability to make sound decisions by understanding 

when she has had too much to drink and is unsafe to operate a motor vehicle.  A person serving 

alcohol to members of the public must be aware of when a patron has had enough to drink and 

should not be served any longer.  If Ms. Neubert cannot understand when she is too drunk to 

drive, it’s unreasonable to believe she would recognize when a patron she is serving has also 

consumed too much alcohol. 

 

Having nine years of no OWI arrests from 2012-2021 is commendable.  However, it is the police 

department’s belief that Ms. Neubert getting arrested a third time for OWI as recently as 2021 

clearly indicates she does not understand the seriousness of drunk driving.  Ms. Neubert has not 

shown she has learned her lesson from the first two arrests, and her pattern of drunk driving 

behavior is concerning. 

 



As a person who wants to be responsible to serve alcohol, Ms. Neubert has not shown the ability 

to make good decisions related to her own sobriety.  The service of alcohol includes coming into 

contact with individuals in a very vulnerable state and the Appleton Police Department feels that 

through Ms. Neubert’s prior OWI convictions that she has not demonstrated the necessary 

maturity and decision-making capacity to be allowed a bartender’s license in the City of 

Appleton.   

 

Ms. Neubert’s repeated OWI convictions qualify her as a habitual law offender and the Appleton 

Police Department recommends her bartender application be denied. 

 

Very Respectfully:  

 

 

Lt. Ben Goodin 

Appleton Police Department     

 

















Mobile User



Mobile User



APPLETON POLICE DEPT

Incident #: A23010205

Reporting Officer: 9153 KYLE JAKOBSEN

Report Time: 03/03/2023 01:06:26

Incident 

Incident Nature
Battery

Address
425 W COLLEGE AV; 
SPEAKEASY
APPLETON, Wisconsin 54911

Occurred From
03/03/2023 01:06:26

Occurred To
03/03/2023 01:06:26

Received By
437 NOAH HENKE

How Received
Officer Report

Contact Disposition
Clrd Adlt, Arst (One Incident)

Disposition Date
03/03/2023

Cleared
N

Intrnl Inc. Sts
Cleared By Arrest

Cleared Date Clearance
REPORT

Cargo Theft Related

Responding Officer(s) 

9193 BRYCE RUDEBECK

9153 KYLE JAKOBSEN

9132 SKYLAR CORBETT

9119 TYRELL WEST

9133 YEELENG THOR

9158 SAMUEL PATEK

9148 SAMUEL VANDINTER

Case Numbers 

A24018634

Digital Media Storage
Code ID

AXON 9153

Offenses 

Page 1 of 7

10/3/2024file:///C:/Users/buruinzn/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



Simple Assault

Completed? 
C

Method Of Entry Gambling Motivated? 

Premises Entered? Location Type 
03

Cargo Theft Related? 

Statute 
940.19(1)

Description 
MISDEMEANOR BATTERY

Category 
OTHER

Bias Motivation 

88

Offender Used 

N

Weapons 

40

Persons 

WELLS, DONTONIO F
Witness

WELLS, STEVEN N JR
Adult Offender

 

Page 2 of 7

10/3/2024file:///C:/Users/buruinzn/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



Narratives 

Original Narrative 03/10/2023 22:26:34

On March 3 2023, I officer K Jakobsen 9153 was working as a sworn police officer for the Appleton 
Police Department in Outagamie County WI with FTO S Gueli 9142.  I was parked in a marked black 
and white patrol vehicle near southbound N Division Street at W College Avenue, for the purposes 
of visual presence in vicinity the downtown Appleton nightclubs and bars.  At approximately 0105 
hours, my attention was drawn to a possible disturbance near the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge, located 
at 425 W College Avenue.  I observed what appeared to be a physical altercation amongst several 
adult parties on the sidewalk.  I immediately activated my patrol vehicle lights and responded to 
the scene.  Officer S Gueli related the situation to dispatch via radio.   

As we approached the scene, I observed a white male adult crouched on the sidewalk, with an 
injury sustained to his face.  I observed blood dripping from his face.  Several parties fled the 

Page 3 of 7

10/3/2024file:///C:/Users/buruinzn/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



scene, dispersing both east and west on the sidewalk, and back into the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge.  
Officer Gueli and I entered the Speakeasy and voiced police presence.  We were confronted by two 
black male adults.  One subject, who was identified as Dontonio Wells, identified himself as an 
employee/manager.  The other subject, identified as Steven Wells, identified himself as an 
employee/bouncer.  Dontonio Wells provided a statement to officer Gueli, ultimately indicating a 
fight occurred in the bar, and when his brother, Steven Wells, attempted to have a patron escorted 
out, the patron struck Steven Wells in the face.  When asked if we could view any security camera 
footage, Dontonio related he would provide security camera footage on a usb thumb drive.   

Steven Wells approached officer Gueli and I near the front entrance and showed us what appeared 
to be a recent abrasion and recent swelling to his right brow.  Steven Wells related he was hit in 
the face while escorting a patron out of the bar.  Steven Wells related he did not wish to pursue 
criminal charges and made several statements he would handle the confrontation on his own.  
Steven Wells appeared highly agitated and did not want to provide a statement regarding the 
circumstances and the injury he sustained.  Steven Wells left the scene on foot, walking east.  
Steven Wells was clearly very upset and angry, he appeared choleric and volatile.  The patron had 
since left the scene, and likely fled while officer Gueli and I were inside the Speakeasy Ultra 
Lounge.   

While speaking with additional officers on scene, as well as Dontonio Wells, I heard Steven Wells 
yell to officers that we needed to respond to Chadwick's (413 College Avenue).  Steven Wells stated 
officers had ten seconds to respond or he was going to "kill him".  Steven Wells began trotting 
towards Chadwick's, while counting down from five very loudly.  I responded to Chadwick's, and 
observed Steven Wells near the rear of the bar.  Steven Wells was being physically restrained by 
several subject's from making entry into the men's restroom.  With the assistance of officers on 
scene, as well as Dontonio Wells, Steven Wells was removed from Chadwick's and separated from 
the immediate area.  Officer Gueli and I made entry into the men's restroom and observed the 
white male subject involved in the physical disturbance.  The subject, who was later identified as 

, had what appeared to be a large abrasion and significant swelling sustained to his left 
eye socket and brow.  An adhesive dressing was placed over the abrasion, and his cheek was 
swollen.   

I advised  of the reason for police contact.   denied any involvement.  I asked  to exit 
the restroom and walk with me outside Chadwick's.  became confrontational when asked to 
leave the bar with police.  I assumed a transport hold on  by clamping above his left elbow.  

 pulled his arm away and yelled at me that I was not to touch his arm.  I told  he was to 
be escorted out of the bar while being held.   became increasingly agitated and continued to 
pull his arm away, while yelling at me.  I elected to place  in handcuffs due to his apparent 
level of intoxication and volatile demeanor.   was placed in handcuffs and walked outside of 
Chadwick's, where he was ultimately walked across the street to a safe location. 

Once across the street,  demeanor reduced and he apologized for acting confrontational.  
 was released of handcuffs and provided the following statement in summary:  He went to the 

downtown Appleton bars with his girlfriend and his girlfriend's sister.  While at the Speakeasy Ultra 
Lounge, he was at the bar with his girlfriend.  A physical fight erupted behind him.  He turned 
around and attempted to break up the fight by attempting to pull one man off another man.  He 
related he was telling the man the fight is over and was trying to physically remove one man from 
another.  While attempting to do so, he was grabbed from behind and wrapped in arms.  Whoever 
wrapped their arms around him began to drag him towards the front door of the bar.  He physically 
resisted and swung his elbows towards the back of his head, towards the subject who had him 
wrapped.  He was drug outside and attacked by several people.  He was face down on the sidewalk 
while being attacked.  He was kicked in the face while face down.  Shortly after he observed the 
police.  He left the scene and went to Chadwick's to seek medical attention.  Subsequent to 
obtaining a statement,  was released to the care of his girlfriend's sister, .   

Utilizing Avigilon Services, I obtained digital camera footage of the immediate area where the 
confrontation occurred.  Per the digital footage, I observed several adult male subjects dragging 

 out of the front entrance of the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge.  Steven Wells was observed assisting 
in dragging Klug out.  Steven Wells was wearing all red, with a black and white vest, which was 

Page 4 of 7

10/3/2024file:///C:/Users/buruinzn/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



very distinguishable.   brought his knees towards his check and laid on the sidewalk facedown, 
in a modified prone position.   was clearly not posing any threat and was not fighting.  I 
observed Steven Wells kick the left side of Klug's face.  As a result, Klug's head violently jolted to 
the right.  Seconds later, police lights were observed.  All parties, aside from Klug were observed 
fleeing on foot moments prior to my arrival. 

On March 10 2023, at approximately 1530 hours, I attempted to contact Dontonio Wells via 
telephone.  Wells did not answer.  A voicemail was left requesting contact.  On March 10 2023, at 
approximately 2208 hours, I responded to the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge.  Upon arrival I spoke with 
an employee and requested to speak with Dontonio Wells.  The employee walked to the rear of the 
bar and came back several minutes later.  The employee related Dontonio was using the restroom 
and would be out shortly.  I told the employee to have Dontonio meet us on the sidewalk outside 
the front entrance.  After waiting outside in front of the Speakeasy for an unreasonable amount of 
time, I determined Dontonio was declining to speak with me. 

Arrest and Custody Information: 

Based on the aforementioned information, I determined the subject, Steven Wells, was in violation 
of the following and is being referred to the Outagamie 
County District Attorney's Office: 

- Misdemeanor Battery / 940.19(9) 

Case Status and Disposition: 

Case is cleared by arrest. 

Recording Device: 

Axon active. 

Jakobsen 9153

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/03/2023 01:37:42 9132 SKYLAR 
CORBETT

On 03/03/2023 I Ofc. Corbett assisted Ofc. Jakobsen on a disturbance screen that originated at 
SpeakEasy Bar (425 W. College Ave.). I was working fully uniformed patrol for the City of Appleton 
at the time. When I arrived on scene, I was tasked with speaking to a female witness later verbally 
identified as . 

 claimed that she was out at the bars on College Ave. with her two friends. While in the 
SpeakEasy Bar, she and her friend witnessed two black males start a fight between each other. 
Kathleen's male friend  tried to intervein and stop the fight. When he did so, he became 
inadvertently involved.  clarified that  was trying to break up the fight and not get 
involved. The fight lead to the sidewalk just outside of the bar.  then observed multiple 
more people primarily black males proceed to beat up her friend. Shortly after is when police 
arrived.  

I notified Ofc. Jakobsen of my finding and I left, clearing from the call.  

RECORDING DEVICE: AXON ON - 9132 

END OF SUPPLEMENT 

Page 5 of 7

10/3/2024file:///C:/Users/buruinzn/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



OFC. CORBETT - 9132

Supplemental 
Narrative

03/03/2023 01:53:00 9142 SAM GUELI

On Friday, 03/03/2023, I, Officer Sam Gueli, was field training Officer Jakobsen 
while conducting extra patrol at the PAC, observing the downtown bars.  At 
approximately 0105 hours, I observed what appeared to be a physical disturbance 
occurring at Speakeasy, 425 W College Ave in the City of Appleton, Outagamie 
County, WI. 

Officer Jakobsen drove to the front of the business and I exited the vehicle. A 
group of people who were outside immediately went inside the Speakeasy. I went 
inside Speakeasy and told them to stop and they complied. A male, later 
identified as Dontonio Wells, approached me and said that the male I asked to 
stop was the bouncer. Dontonio explained he was the manager working. Dontonio 
later identified him as his brother, Steven Wells. Dontonio explained that 
Steven was trying to remove a patron from the bar who was later identified as 

. Dontonio said Steven was hit by  and sustained an injury. Steven 
came over to me and showed me a bump above his right eye that appeared to be 
new. Steven confirmed  hit him while he was trying to remove him. Steven 
said he did not want to press charges and that he would take care of it himself. 
At this point, we weren't sure who  was or where he went. Dontonio said he 
last saw him outside and he would show us who he was. 

We went outside and  was not located. While speaking outside Speakeasy with 
Dontonio, Steven yelled from in front of Chadwick's stating that he found the 
guy and that we had "10 seconds" before he "killed" him. Officers went to 
Chadwicks and Officer Van Dinter spoke with Steven while Officer Jakobsen and I 
spoke with .  

I explained to  that I would like to talk to him about what happened at 
Speakeasy. I asked  to step out of the bathroom with us and at first he was 
hesitant, but ultimately agreed to.  stepped just outside the bathroom. 
Officer Jakobsen told him to continue to walk and he did not. Officer Jakobsen 
felt  tense up and placed him into handcuffs which were checked for proper 
fit and safety locked. Officer Jakobsen and I walked  over to the PAC to 
interview. Officer Jakobsen interviewed  who was ultimately released.  

For further details on this interview and this incident, see Officer Jakobsen's 
report.  

RECORDING: 

Axon an.  

End of report.  
S. Gueli #9142 

cc: OCDA - Steven NMI Wells, DOB: 08/21/1996 (referred 03/14/2023 SLK)

Page 6 of 7

10/3/2024file:///C:/Users/buruinzn/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



Supplemental 
Narrative

04/24/2024 16:24:53 9153 KYLE JAKOBSEN

On April 24 2024 I Officer K Jakobsen 9153 was working as a sworn police officer 
with the Appleton Police Department in Outagamie County WI.  I received 
correspondence from the Outagamie County District Attorney's officer requesting 
follow up.  Most notably, correspondence indicated the victim party had provided 
false identifying information to officers on scene by providing the name and 
date of birth of his brother. 

I contacted subject  via telephone.   related he had received a 
subpoena for being a victim.  He related he was not a victim nor was he on scene 
on the date and time of the crime.  He related he was in Michigan and was 
involved in a snowmobile race.  He related his brother, who he identified as 

 is local to the Appleton area and he believed his 
brother provided police with his name and birthdate.   related he does not 
speak with his brother , as  had been going "down a path" that he 
did not agree with.  He related he confront  over the subpoena via 
Facebook messenger, to which  admitted to providing false information.  

 related  was on probation at the time of the crime and gave false 
information to the police to negate a possible probation violation arrest. 

Utilizing DOT, I obtained photographs of both  and .  
Additionally, I examined Axon body worn camera footage from the date of the 
arrest.  I compared images of the victim with DOT photos and concluded the 
victim in this matter is . 

 related he would attempt to locate the Facebook messages he and his 
brother shared which included  admitting to providing false information to 
the police.  He further related he would obtain images of the conversation and 
forward them to me digitally.  Should I receive said images, they will be 
submitted to evidence per departmental policy. 

Based on the statement provided by , as well as the DOT images I 
examined, I determined  was in violation of 
Wisconsin State Statute Ch. 946.41(1) / resisting and/or obstructing.   

The suspect / victim,  is being referred to the Outagamie County 
District Attorney's officer for the following violation under A24018634: 

- Wisconsin State Statute Ch. 946.41(1) / resisting and/or obstructing.  
 knowingly provided a false name and date of birth to police in an 

effort to negate possible probation violation charges. 

End of supplemental. 

Axon activated. 

Officer K Jakobsen 9153. 

cc: OCDA - Steven NMI Wells, DOB: 08/21/1996 SUP#3 (04/25/2024 SLK)

Page 7 of 7

10/3/2024file:///C:/Users/buruinzn/AppData/Roaming/Spillman/Mobile/temp/Incident_PrintOutput.html



 

11/29/2023 

   

For Official Use 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT OUTAGAMIE COUNTY 
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 Plaintiff, 

 
vs. 
 
STEVEN NMI WELLS JR. 
1137 Lawndale Drive 
Menasha, WI 54952 
DOB: 08/21/1996 
Sex/Race: M/B 
Eye Color: Black 
Hair Color: Black 
Height: 5 ft 7 in 
Weight:  lbs 
Alias: Also Known As Steven Wells 
 Defendant. 

 

DA Case No.: 2023OU001058 

Assigned DA/ADA: Nicholas P. Grode 

Agency Case No.: A23010205 

Court Case No.:  

ATN:  

 

 
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT 

The undersigned, being first duly sworn, states that: 
 
Count 1: MISDEMEANOR BATTERY 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Friday, March 3, 2023, in the City of Appleton, 
Outagamie County, Wisconsin, did cause bodily harm to TRPK, by an act done with intent to 
cause bodily harm to that person, without that person's consent, contrary to sec. 940.19(1), 
939.51(3)(a), 973.046(1r), 973.047(1f) Wis. Stats., a Class A Misdemeanor, and upon 
conviction may be fined not more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), or imprisoned not 
more than nine (9) months, or both.  
 
And furthermore, invoking the provisions of Wisconsin Statute 973.046(1r), if the court imposes 
a sentence or places a person on probation, the court shall impose a deoxyribonucleic acid 
analysis surcharge, calculated as follows: (a) For each conviction for a felony, $250 (b) For 
each conviction for a misdemeanor, $200. 
 
And furthermore, invoking the provisions of Wisconsin Statute 973.047(1f), if the court imposes 
a sentence or places a person on probation, the court shall require the person to provide a 
biological specimen to the state crime laboratories for deoxyribonucleic acid analysis. The 
court shall inform the person that he may request expungement under s. 165.77 (4). 
 
 
PROBABLE CAUSE:  
 
AND PRAYS SAID DEFENDANT BE DEALT WITH ACCORDING TO LAW; AND THAT THE 
BASIS FOR THE COMPLAINANT'S CHARGE OF SUCH OFFENSE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Complainant is a sworn law enforcement officer and bases this Complaint upon the 
investigation of the officers named below, who are presumed truthful and reliable as sworn law 
enforcement officials. 
 

Case 2023CM000942 Document 2 Filed 11-30-2023 Page 1 of 3
FILED
11-30-2023
Clerk of Circuit Court
Outagamie County

2023CM000942



STATE OF WISCONSIN - VS -  Steven NMI Wells Jr. 

11/29/2023 2 

At approximately 0105 hours on March 3 2023, Officer K Jakobsen of the Sturgeon Bay Police 
Department learned of a possible disturbance near the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge, located at 
425 W College Avenue, in the city of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin. At 
approximately that time Officer Jakobsen observed what appeared to be a physical altercation 
amongst several adult parties on the sidewalk. Officer Jakobsen immediately activated his 
patrol vehicle lights and responded to the scene. Officer S Gueli related the situation to 
dispatch via radio.  
 
As we approached the scene, Officer Jakobsen observed a white male adult crouched on the 
sidewalk, with an injury sustained to his face. Officer Jakobsen observed blood dripping from 
his face. Several parties fled the scene, dispersing both east and west on the sidewalk, and 
back into the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge. Officer Gueli and Officer Jakobsen entered the 
Speakeasy and voiced police presence. We were confronted by two black male adults. One 
subject, who was identified as Dontonio Wells, identified himself as an employee/manager. 
The other subject, identified as Steven Wells, identified himself as an employee/bouncer. 
Dontonio Wells provided a statement to officer Gueli, ultimately indicating a fight occurred in 
the bar, and when his brother, Steven Wells, attempted to have a patron escorted out, the 
patron struck Steven Wells in the face. When asked if we could view any security camera 
footage, Dontonio related he would provide security camera footage on a USB thumb drive. 
Dontario Wells never provided said USB footage.  
 
Steven Wells approached officer Gueli and Officer Jakobsen near the front entrance and 
showed us what appeared to be a recent abrasion and recent swelling to his right brow. 
Steven Wells related he was hit in the face while escorting a patron out of the bar. Steven 
Wells related he did not wish to pursue criminal charges and made several statements he 
would handle the confrontation on his own. Steven Wells appeared highly agitated and did not 
want to provide a statement regarding the circumstances and the injury he sustained. Steven 
Wells left the scene on foot, walking east. Steven Wells was clearly very upset and angry, he 
appeared choleric and volatile. The patron had since left the scene, and likely fled while officer 
Gueli and Officer Jakobsen were inside the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge.  
 
While speaking with additional officers on scene, as well as Dontonio Wells, Officer Jakobsen 
heard Steven Wells yell to officers they needed to respond to Chadwick's, located at 413 
College Avenue, in the city of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin. Steven Wells stated 
officers had ten seconds to respond or he was going to "kill him". Steven Wells began trotting 
towards Chadwick's, while counting down from five very loudly. Officer Jakobsen responded to 
Chadwick's, and observed Steven Wells near the rear of the bar. Steven Wells was being 
physically restrained by several subject's from making entry into the men's restroom. With the 
assistance of officers on scene, as well as Dontonio Wells, Steven Wells was removed from 
Chadwick's and separated from the immediate area.  
 
Officer Gueli and Officer Jakobsen made entry into the men's restroom and observed the white 
male subject involved in the physical disturbance. The subject, who was later identified as 
TRPK, had what appeared to be a large abrasion and significant swelling sustained to his left 
eye socket and brow. An adhesive dressing was placed over the abrasion, and his cheek was 
swollen.  
 
Officer Jakobsen advised TRPK of the reason for police contact. TRPK denied any 
involvement. Officer Jakobsen asked TRPK to exit the restroom and walk with him outside 

Case 2023CM000942 Document 2 Filed 11-30-2023 Page 2 of 3



STATE OF WISCONSIN - VS -  Steven NMI Wells Jr. 

11/29/2023 3 

Chadwick's. TRPK became confrontational when asked to leave the bar with police, but 
eventually complied, but was apparently intoxicated at the time.  
 
Once across the street, TRPK's demeanor reduced and he apologized for acting 
confrontational. TRPK was released of handcuffs and provided the following statement in 
summary: He went to the downtown Appleton bars with his girlfriend and his girlfriend's sister. 
While at the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge, he was at the bar with his girlfriend. A physical fight 
erupted behind him. He turned around and attempted to break up the fight by attempting to pull 
one man off another man. He related he was telling the man the fight is over and was trying to 
physically remove one man from another. While attempting to do so, he was grabbed from 
behind and wrapped in arms. Whoever wrapped their arms around him began to drag him 
towards the front door of the bar. He physically resisted and swung his elbows towards the 
back of his head, towards the subject who had him wrapped. He was drug outside and 
attacked by several people. He was face down on the sidewalk while being attacked. He was 
kicked in the face while face down. Shortly after he observed the police. He left the scene and 
went to Chadwick's to seek medical attention. Subsequent to obtaining a statement, TRPK was 
released to the care of his girlfriend's sister.  
 
Utilizing Avigilon Services, Officer Jakobsen obtained digital camera footage of the immediate 
area where the confrontation occurred. Per the digital footage, Officer Jakobsen observed 
several adult male subjects dragging TRPK out of the front entrance of the Speakeasy Ultra 
Lounge. Steven Wells was observed assisting in dragging TRPK out. Steven Wells was 
wearing all red, with a black and white vest, which was very distinguishable. TRPK brought his 
knees towards his check and laid on the sidewalk facedown, in a modified prone position. 
TRPK was clearly not posing any threat and was not fighting. Officer Jakobsen observed 
Steven Wells kick the left side of TRPK's face. As a result, TRPK's head violently jolted to the 
right. Seconds later, police lights were observed. All parties, aside from TRPK were observed 
fleeing on foot moments prior to officer’s arrival.   
 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on 11/30/23 

Electronically Signed By:  

Isaac R. Lent 

Assistant District Attorney 

State Bar #: 1101748 

Electronically Signed By:  

Michael Velie 

Complainant 

 
 

Case 2023CM000942 Document 2 Filed 11-30-2023 Page 3 of 3







100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, August 16, 2023

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order at 7:05 p.m. by Council President Van Zeeland.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Jones.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

Present: 14 - 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake WoodfordExcused: 2 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All Departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

23-0984 Common Council Meeting Minutes of August 2, 2023

 

CC Minutes 8-2-23.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the Minutes 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23158
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=42c29427-3da0-49f1-8a48-523836c438ea.pdf


August 16, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

23-0988 Confirmation of Board of Review Alternate Appointments

 

Aug 16 2023 Board of Review Appt Memo.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Jones, that the 

Appointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Israel 

Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, 

Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

Abstained: Alderperson Vered Meltzer1 - 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

There was no one signed up to speak during Public Participation.

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

23-0987 Resolution authorizing and providing for the sale and issuance of General 

Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2023 and all related details. 

 

FINAL Appleton 2023 G.O. Promissory Notes - Award Resolution.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Resolution be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

Page 2City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23162
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=c3a77d00-f395-4a53-819b-e899911a4ea2.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23161
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2c4ff57b-5ec4-48fc-bec8-43a9f9e66cd6.pdf


August 16, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0949 Request from Colleen Vanden Heuvel at 1007 N. Badger Avenue for a 

Terrace Occupancy Permit to keep an existing 4’ fence, lilacs, 

landscaping stone and pavers in the street terrace along W. Commercial 

Street.

1007 Badger Ave memo.pdf

1007 Badger Ave application.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the 

Terrace Occupancy Permit be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, Alderperson Alex 

Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson 

Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and Alderperson Chad Doran

13 - 

Nay: Alderperson Patrick Hayden1 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

23-0982 Alcohol License Suspension Hearing for BT & DAVE, LLC DBA: 

Speakeasy Ultra Lounge, Theodore Suess, Agent

 

Complaint - Speakeasy 8-4-23.pdf

Summons - Speakeasy 8-4-23.pdf

Speakeasy Stipulation.pdf

Speakeasy Stipulation 8-2023 Signed.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Schultz moved, seconded by Alderperson Wolff, that the 

Stipulation be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

23-0959 Request for Finance Director to sell $20,200,000 of General Obligation 

Promissory Notes

 

Alderperson Firkus moved, seconded by Alderperson Meltzer, that the Note 

Sale be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Page 3City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23123
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d8a3065e-6435-4e0c-8599-b8409283107b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3c9679b0-0516-436d-9174-20abb46b8e1a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23156
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4386a623-53f0-4703-a027-584b22c4156d.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b67344e6-1b7a-473e-973d-2f9a1eaa0505.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=919686b3-abe9-4477-afe0-46cec8f63520.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dc29a204-582a-46d5-ae3a-4242fa008acd.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23133


August 16, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

23-0960 Request to Award the 2023 Lundgaard Park Development Project 

contract to Vinton Construction Company in the amount of $911,177.70 

with a 15% contingency of $137,000 for a project not to exceed 

$1,048,177.70.

Lundgaard Park Development Project Finance Memo_.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Hayden, that the 

Contract be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Firkus moved, Alderperson Meltzer seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

23-0950 Approve modification to the parking restrictions in the downtown 

business area, the southside of the 400 and 500 block of W. College 

Avenue. 

College Av 400W  500W - APD memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 4City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23134
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dfc6ad59-cbe9-401a-a029-f983c93bd40b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23124
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b3842186-55f3-42bd-8c27-224d5a3d49db.pdf


August 16, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0951 Request from OB’s Brau Haus for a street occupancy permit to place 

tables and chairs in the College Avenue beautification strip at 523/525 

W. College Avenue.

Table and Chairs Ob Brau Haus.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0967 Request from The Boldt Company for a permanent street occupancy 

permit for the Appleton Library construction site perimeter fencing and 

staging on N. Oneida Street, W. Franklin Street, N. Appleton Street and 

W. Washington Street for a period ending on October 24, 2024.

Occupancy Permit Appleton Public Library.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

23-0824 Fire Department Service Agreement for Gold Cross Ambulance

 

Service Agreement for Gold Cross Ambulance.pdf

Amended GOLD CROSS - SHARED SERVICES AND OPERATING 

AGRM - 08-10-2023.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0916 Reserve "Class B" Liquor License application for El Guadalajara 

Mexican Restaurant LLC d/b/a El Guadalajara Mexican Restaurant, 

Lucelia Guzman, Agent, located at 1003 W Northland Ave Suite B.

El Guadalajara Mexican Restaurant-Reserve Liquor app.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0918 Class "B" Beer License application for Newell Company Inc, d/b/a 

Lumberjack Johnny's, David Oshefsky, Agent, located at 2701 N Oneida 

St Ste E, contingent upon approval from the Health and Inspections 

departments.

Lumberjack Johnnys.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 5City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23125
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=525960ca-9c7e-4357-9ad0-e696b261195b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23141
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4229c512-b2a8-47f0-8998-3abe3af3e3fa.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22999
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=714ea7e5-8ca9-400d-86d2-36b4d8443c5e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=87470460-b639-4ac5-8d29-02fedf515588.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23091
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e39699c7-043b-4fb5-9454-a4700a4085a3.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23093
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=70e8e8a0-84eb-4a3b-ac16-e76a084bb859.pdf


August 16, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0983 Fire Department contract with Department of Military Affairs for 

Radiological Field Team Services

 

Radiological Field Team Services Appleton 2023-2027  (DMA 

7-12-2023 Legal Edits).pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

23-0969 Request to approve Dental Associates, Manos Holding North Appleton 

LLC request for partial refund of 2021 and 2022 real estate property 

taxes in the amount of $21,326.18 for 2115 E Evergreen Dr, Appleton, WI 

(parcel 31-1-6510-39)

8-2-23Dental Associates Summary Memo.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

23-0944 Award Engineering Services Contract for the AWTF Clearwells and 

Lindbergh Standpipe Project to McMahon Associates, Inc., in the amount 

of $39,100 with a 10% contingency of $3,910 for a project total not to 

exceed $40,010.

 

Clearwells and Lindbergh Project - Engineering Award 07-31-23.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

23-0927 Department of Public Works Traffic Table of Organization Change. 

Memo - HR Committee Traffic Engineer Position.pdf

Public Works TO.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23157
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3fffc380-cc60-408e-9696-787b09575edf.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23143
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=06659ebc-96a6-4c7d-8f30-5627fa242b1f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23119
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=82335194-6eac-41da-a95d-0e00f82a724c.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23102
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b02c8863-fa3c-4888-8785-69141c37e370.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4bb221f5-68f5-4195-99e8-9ec1739bbc29.pdf


August 16, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0928 Valley Transit Table of Organization Change 1.0 FTE Utility Worker 

Position. 

 

Valley Transit Memo.pdf

Valley Transit DRAFT 7.24.23.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

ORDINANCESO.

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

23-1012 Resolution #9-R-23 Mental Health Awareness & Services 

 

#9-R-23 mental health awareness.pdfAttachments:

23-1013 Resolution #10-R-23 Allocation of State Shared Revenue Aid

 

#10-R-23 Allocation of State Shared Revenue Aid.pdfAttachments:

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Hartzheim moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 7:27 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Page 7City of Appleton

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23103
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1e523131-0e94-425e-bbc3-8d9e521f41a9.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ea66c9b5-42e0-46f2-a1cd-8e8b12535f8e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23186
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9b7e2e44-7336-4085-9017-1e472689cbde.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=23187
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b39a89d3-614e-4fd1-a74f-df9c8123c9e7.pdf


August 16, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Patrick Hayden, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Excused: Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Mayor Jake Woodford2 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 8City of Appleton







8/9/23





 

 

 

IN THE CITY OF APPLETON, 

OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, STATE OF 

WISCONSIN, BEFORE THE 

SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

GARY LEWIS, 

  Complainant 

 

v. 

 

BT AND DAVE, LLC 

AGENT: THEODORE SUESS 

d/b/a SPEAKEASY ULTRA LOUNGE 

425 W. COLLEGE AVE. 

APPLETON, WI 54911 

 

REPORT TO THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF APPLETON 

 

The above matter came before the Safety and Licensing Committee on December 11, 2024, after 

a Complaint was filed with the City Clerk on or about December 2, 2024, requesting that the 

alcohol beverage license issued to BT and Dave, LLC be revoked.  A copy of this report shall be 

given to the complainant and licensee (agent Theodore Suess).  If either the complainant or 

licensee files an objection to this report with the City Clerk prior to the matter being decided by 

the Common Council, they will have an opportunity to present arguments supporting the 

objection to the Common Council, who shall determine whether the arguments shall be presented 

orally or in writing or both. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. BT and Dave, LLC, doing business as Speakeasy Ultra Lounge, has a premises licensed 

by the City of Appleton for retail alcohol beverage sales located at 425 W. College Ave. 

in Appleton, Wisconsin. 

2. Theodore (“Ted”) Suess is the registered agent for BT and Dave, LLC. 

3. Steven Wells was an employee of BT and Dave, LLC working at Speakeasy Ultra 

Lounge as a bouncer on March 3, 2023. 

4. BT and Dave, LLC was issued a Class “B” (beer) and “Class B” (liquor) licenses for the 

premises doing business as Speakeasy Ultra Lounge. 



 

 

5. On May 21, 2024, Steven Wells found guilty and convicted of Battery based on his 

conduct while working at Speakeasy Ultra Lounge on March 3, 2023.   

6. Steven Wells’ conduct on March 3, 2023, included kicking a bar patron in the side of the 

face while the patron was lying face down on the sidewalk outside the Speakeasy Ultra 

Lounge after the patron was forcibly removed by staff.  This conduct is found to be in 

violation of Sec. 9-54(b) of the City of Appleton Municipal Code, specifically “Other 

acts – failure to maintain order / disorderly conduct, noise complaints, etc.” Additionally, 

this conduct resulted in bodily harm to the patron. 

7. Steven Well’s conduct while working under the employment of the licensee on March 3, 

2023, is substantially related to the licensed activity, i.e., the retail sale of alcohol 

beverages at the premises identified as the Speakeasy Ultra Lounge. 

8. On December 2, 2024, Gary Lewis, a resident of Appleton, filed a sworn, written 

Complaint with the City of Appleton Clerk requesting revocation of the alcohol beverage 

license issued to BT and Dave, LLC. 

9. On December 3, 2024, a Summons and Complaint was served on Ted Suess commanding 

him to appear before the Safety and Licensing Committee on December 11, 2024, at 5:30 

p.m. to show cause why the alcohol beverage licenses issued to BT and Dave, LLC 

should not be revoked. 

10. On December 11, 2024, Ted Suess appeared at the Safety and Licensing Committee 

meeting and did not deny the complaint. 

11. The licensee was assessed 150 demerit points on or about August 16, 2023 (see Action 

Item 23-0982) for violations with an associated date of conviction of June 30, 2023. 

12. The Safety and Licensing Committee finds the Complaint to be true. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The Safety and Licensing Committee of the Common Council of the City of Appleton 

has proper jurisdiction to conduct a revocation hearing for alcohol beverage licenses 

pursuant to Section 9-54 of the Municipal Code of the City of Appleton (“Code”) and 

Wis. Stat. §125.12. 

2. The Demerit Point System contained in Section 9-54 of the Code is a municipal 

regulation adopted under Wis. Stat. §125.10 and therefore the alcohol beverage licenses 

granted to BT and Dave, LLC can be revoked based on the adopted Demerit Point 

System. 

3. Pursuant to Section 9-54 of the Code, upon the findings of fact related to the conviction 

for Battery, including other relevant information presented to the Safety and Licensing 

Committee pertaining to the conduct of Steven Wells, 145 demerit points shall be 

assigned to the licensee as of the date of conviction, May 21, 2024.  Specifically, 45 

demerit points are assessed due to the “Other acts – failure to maintain order / disorderly 



 

 

conduct, noise complaints, etc.” violation and 100 demerit points are assessed due to the 

applicable “penalty enhancer for severe offenses” for violations “resulting bodily harm to 

any individual.”  

4. The Safety and Licensing Committee concludes that Section 9-54(d)(3) of the Code calls 

for the revocation of a license when the total number of demerit points within a 36-month 

period is 200 or greater. 

5. The Safety and Licensing Committee concludes that the total number of demerit points 

assessed to the BT and Dave, LLC within a 36-month period beginning on the earliest 

date of conviction above is 295  

6. The Safety and Licensing Committee concludes that the alcohol beverage licenses issued 

to BT and Dave, LLC should be revoked pursuant to Section 9-54(d)(3) of the Code. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Based on the above findings of fact and conclusions of law, the Safety and Licensing Committee 

recommends that the Common Council of the City of Appleton FIND THE COMPLAINT TO 

BE TRUE AND REVOKE the Retail Licenses for Class “B” (beer) and Reserve “Class B” 

(liquor) issued to BT and Dave, LLC. 

 

Dated this 11th day of December 2024 

______________________________________ 

Alderperson Chris Croatt 

Chairperson, Safety and Licensing Committee 



lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil





lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil







































 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

 

 

TO:  Safety and Licensing Committee  

  Common Council  

 

FROM: Lt. Ben Goodin 

 

DATE: 11/26/2024 

 

RE: Police Department’s Investigation into Delaire’s Reported Gambling Machine 

Operation 

 
 

 

Committee Members:  

 

On 10/16/24 I received email correspondence from City of Appleton attorney Zak Buruin.  

Attorney Buruin informed me a new bar attempting to open at 823 W. College Ave. known as 

Delaire's initially had their alcohol license approved by the Safety and Licensing committee.  On 

the licensing application, Delaire's is reportedly going to be a coffee bar and a traditional bar 

serving alcoholic beverages.  However, Alderperson Van Zeeland received reports from her 

constituents that Delaire's actually planned on using the business as a gambling parlor.  The City 

Council sent the alcohol license application back to the Safety and Licensing committee to 

review based on this information.  Attorney Buruin informed me the owner of Delaire's, David 

Boulanger, previously tried opening a bar with gaming machines in Grafton, WI in 2022 but was 

denied by Grafton's planning commission. 

 

On 10/23/24 Alderperson Van Zeeland e-mailed me contact information for the main 

complainant about Delaire's, identified as Jaime Pappenfuss.  Jaime runs a salon directly next 

door to Delaire's.  On 10/24/24 I spoke with Jaime over the phone to get her statement.  Jaime 

stated someone gave a person from Delaire's a key to access her business (they have a joint rear 

hallway within the building) to look for some sort of electrical hook up.  Jaime was at her salon 

when this occurred.  Jaime spoke with the male who came over and asked if there was going to 

be a coffee bar in the establishment and the male said "yeah, well not really one with drinks but 

more of a gambling machine lounge."  Jaime informed me she did an internet search and 

discovered David's past encounter in Grafton.  Jaime then forwarded this information to 

Alderperson Van Zeeland. 

 

Jaime stated the above-mentioned comment about the business being a gambling machine lounge 

was captured on her salon cameras.  Jaime sent me the video clip in question which I saved to 

evidence.com.  The video shows Jaime asking an unidentified white male what was going in the 

business next door.  The male responded, "A bar but not really (unintelligible) gambling 

machines".  There was some background noise while the male was speaking, and I couldn't make 



out all of his words.  Jaime then laughed and asked, "like Big Daddy and all that?" and the male 

said "yeah".  After viewing the video and comparing the side view of the male's face with 

David's DOT photo it does not appear that David is the one on video.  The video was recorded 

on 10/15/24 at 2:33 pm according to the time stamp on the footage. 

 

After speaking with Jaime, I went by Delaire's and viewed the interior of the bar from the 

storefront window.  The business had a small bar area, several high back seats with tables, and a 

small couch seating area.  There were no gambling machines visible at that time. 

 

Later on 10/24/24 I spoke on the phone with Timm Gloudemans, who works for Buss Electric 

Inc.  Timm was the electrical inspector hired by Delaire's to complete the electrical permit for the 

business.  I asked Timm if there was anything unusual about his time in Delaire's or anything 

from an electrical wiring standpoint and he said no.  Timm advised the inspection was pretty 

standard and nothing suspicious occurred.  Timm did not know anything about gambling 

machines being installed at the business. 

 

I attempted to speak with the owner of Amberlulu Bubble Tea and Desserts (Uni Uni) which is 

the business on the other side of Delaire's.  I went by Uni Uni on 11/6/24 and spoke with the 

manager, who called and messaged the owner Fannie, but she did not respond.  I left the manager 

my business card and asked her to have Fannie call me.  I called Fannie and left her a voicemail 

and have yet to receive a call back.  Jaime indicated Fannie may have more information about 

the gambling machine allegations which is why I reached out to her. 

 

Jaime also gave me a phone number for the landlord of the property, identified as Jeff.  I called 

Jeff on 11/16/24 and left a voicemail asking him to call me back. 

 

On 11/16/24 I spoke with David over the phone to get his statement.  I told David I had received 

complaints that his new business was going to operate as a gambling parlor instead of a bar.  

David stated he had no intentions of running any sort of gambling operation and was opening the 

business as a bar just as he indicated on his alcohol license application.  I told David about the 

video Jaime sent me and he stated he had no idea who she spoke with that made that comment on 

the video.  David said he did not plan on having any sort of gambling machines at all.  He said in 

the future he may install some amusement devices that do not pay out any money but that's it. 

 

As of 11/26/24 I have not developed any other leads to investigate this complaint. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Ben Goodin 

Lieutenant 

Appleton Police 



 
 

 

826 N Plankinton Ave. Suite 600 Milwaukee, WI 53203 

414. 585. 0588 (office) ovblaw.com 414. 255. 3031 (fax) 

 
 
 
December 6, 2024         
 

Emil Ovbiagele      
             emil@ovblaw.com  

[via Email Only] 
City of Appleton 
Attn: Kami Lynch  
kami.lynch@appleton.org 
 

RE: REQUEST TO HOLD LICENSING HEARING 
Delaire’s LLC – 823 W College Ave. 

 
Dear Ms. Lynch, 
 
 Please be advised that my office has been retained by Delaire’s LLC, and its agent, David 
Boulanger, as it pertains to my client’s business license applications to operate at 823 W College 
Ave., Appleton, WI 54914.  
 
 My client is currently scheduled to come before the Safety and Licensing Committee on 
December 11, 2024. However, after careful consideration, my client is requesting that their 
appearance before the Safety and Licensing Committee be held until a later date. At this time, my 
client needs the additional time to meet with community members and those who have special 
interest in the business. The additional time will further allow my client the ability to provide the 
Committee with more information concerning their business operations.   
 
 Please feel free to direct any questions to me concerning my client’s matter. I appreciate your 
attention to this matter. 
 
 

 
 
 
Very Truly Yours, 
 
OVB Law & Consulting, S.C. 
          

/s/ 
  
 Emil Ovbiagele, JD, MBA 

    Attorney 
  

OEO/ab 
 
 

mailto:emil@ovblaw.com
mailto:kami.lynch@appleton.


lindsay.reuer
Pencil

lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



lindsay.reuer
Pencil



 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:  November 5, 2024 

To:  Safety and Licensing Committee and Common Council 

From:  Jeremy Hansen, Fire Chief 

Subject: Gold Cross Ambulance Shared Service Agreement Annual Review   

 

 

On September 26, 2024, members of the city leadership team and Gold Cross Ambulance (GCA) 
met to review the Shared Service and Operations Agreement.  The review covered the first year 
of a three-year agreement for GCA providing paramedic transport service to the City of Appleton.  
The attached Shared Service and Operating Agreement Annual Review document served as the 
basis for our discussion. 

 

Since the service agreement took effect, GCA and Appleton Fire Department (AFD) have 
exchanged response time data monthly.  The data provided indicates an improvement in 
ambulance response times which meets the established goal of 8 minutes and 59 seconds in all 
but the month of December.  We agreed that future response time data with be further broken 
down into additional emergency medical dispatch categories.  The additional detail will provide a 
clearer picture of response time data based the severity of the medical incident. 

 

AFD and GCA attended joint mass casualty incident training involving both command and line 
staff.  We are collaborating with medical protocols and equipment as the fire department prepares 
to increase our service level to paramedic.  GCA allowed AFD paramedic students to complete 
their clinical ride-along time on their ambulances. 

 

We jointly agreed to work to improve radio communications and established a goal of 90% on-
scene connectivity.  This goal simply means that when AFD units attempt to contact the 
responding ambulance, AFD will be able to communicate with the responding ambulance 90% of 
the time.  This initiative has been in progress for several years; however, this is the first 
established goal. 

 

Our service agreement calls for one paramedic on ambulances that respond to high acuity calls.  
In a few cases, the first unit responding did not have a paramedic.  Later, another ambulance or 
their non-transporting paramedic response vehicle did arrive to provide care.  City leadership 
emphasized the expectation to have more GCA paramedics responding to medical incidents.  We 
also discussed the potential positive impact paramedic engine companies may make toward this 
objective. 

 



Reviewing the patient care metrics, there was a decrease in the on-scene time for stroke and 
heart attack patients and a decrease in the time to perform cardiac monitoring.  These three 
positive care metrics support better patient outcomes. 

 

Overall, we believe that the Service Agreement has helped to organize and systematize our 
discussions. Communications between GCA and AFD have improved, and the first-year data 
indicates modest improvements in some important areas of service and quality for our residents. 
As previously noted, we have identified areas that need continued focus and we will continue to 
carefully monitor progress, reporting back to the Committee as warranted.   

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at (920) 832-1703. 



 

  

2024 

Shared Services and 
Operating Agreement:  
Annual Review 

REPORT PREPARED BY: 

NICK ROMENESKO, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, GOLD CROSS AMBULANCE 



Background: On October 1, 2023, Gold Cross Ambulance Service (GCA) and the City of Appleton entered 

a shared service and operating agreement. During the agreement's formulation, a request was made for 

Gold Cross leadership, including executive leadership and board members, to meet with the City of 

Appleton’s leadership, which was to include the Mayor and Fire Chief.   

Reporting Methodology:  The City of Appleton Fire Department (AFD) has been working collaboratively 

to gather and share data collected by both entities.   This data is shared and reviewed every month. The 

information below is a result of the data exchanged and verified to be accurate by both entities.    The 

data reported is from October 2023 to August 2024. 

VI. Support and Training and Education 

• GCA and the Appleton Fire Department continue collaborating and working on various training 

topics.    

• GCA has supported the AFD paramedic interns through our ride-along internship programs. 

• GCA has completed upgrading our training facility to allow for larger training classes and more 

collaboration with AFD and other first responder partners.  

o Human Patient Simulator  

o Expanded lab and lecture areas 

o Ambulance docking station for real-life simulation 

o Fox Valley Technical College exchange of service agreement 

o Invitations to physician-lead training lectures 

▪ ThedaCare-Trauma Team 

▪ Heart and Vascular Institute Cardiology training 

▪ Neuro-Science Group 

▪ Ascension Intensive Care Team 

• AFD hosted a rescue task force training in August which included multiple ambulance and 

leadership participation by GCA 

VII. Dispatch and Response Time Goals 

AFD Data <4:59    

  
Emergency 
90th 

Non-Emergency 
90th Emergency % Non-Emergency% 

October         

November 5:29 7:04 79% 54.20% 

December 6:15 6:58 72.2% 50.9% 

January 6:07 7:59 69% 40% 

February 5:08 7:46 73.3% 43.1% 

March 7:09 12:51 52.7% 21.2% 

April 5:48 7:19 77.1% 47.4% 

May 5:52 7:13 74.2% 48.2% 

June 6:28 7:35 65.5% 50.0% 

July 6:06 7:17 73.1% 47.2% 

August 5:54 7:14 70.5% 61.0% 

     



GCA Data <8:59 

  
Emergency 
90th 

Non-Emergency 
90th Emergency % Non-Emergency % 

October 8:18 11:59 94.58% 68.66% 

November 8:06 12:04 94.90% 70.00% 

December 9:16 11:34 89.50% 72.20% 

January 8:41 12:32 92.46% 71.60% 

February 8:17 10:53 96.63% 76.11% 

March 8:22 10:53 94.70% 75.67% 

April 8:56 11:07 91.05% 76.17% 

May 8:49 12:08 91.39% 65.38% 

June 8:01 11:41 92.90% 70.60% 

July 8:37 12:02 92.40% 74.13% 

August 8:36 11:46 93.85% 71% 

 

VII. Communications 

• Gold Cross has expanded its dispatch center to improve communications with hospitals and 

public safety partners. 

• Increased staffing levels to better monitor communication and improve dispatch processing 

efficiency.  

• 24/7 coverage of an Operations Manager to improve overall inter-agency communication, 

collaboration, and real-time problem-solving 

 

IX. Local Medical Directors 

• Monthly meetings/communication between Dr. Rose and Dr. Westfall  

• Joint education being conducted in May 

• Collaboration between Dr. Bope, Dr. Westfall, and Dr. Rose at the AFD RTF training exercise.  

XII. Operational Plans and Reports 

Appleton Requests for Service 

Month Emergency 
Non-
Emergency  

Private 
Calls 

Monthly 
Total 

October 287 227 112 626 

November 250 226 110 586 

December 308 227 94 629 

January 297 226 105 628 

February 280 212 96 588 

March 269 234 83 586 

April 257 248 92 597 



May 287 245 93 625 

June 294 205 97 596 

July 273 239 110 622 

August 299 275 106 680 

Annual 3101 2564 1098 6763 

 

• Additional Appleton station opened at Ballard Rd and Evergreen Dr. 

• 24/7 Paramedic Rapid Response Vehicle began in February 2024 

o EMS Branch Director 

o Advanced Skillset 

▪ Rapid Sequence Intubation 

▪ EMT Basic Support 

▪ Whole Blood Administration (Fall 2024 

• Patient Care Metrics: 

o Total number of stroke activations: 72 

o Total number of over-triaged stroke activations: 14 

o On-scene time for stroke patients- (Goal=<15:00) 

▪ 6 month: 15:49 

▪ 12 month: 14:53 

o Total number of STEMI activations: 22 

o Total number of over-triaged STEMI activations: 7 

o At patient o EKG time: (Goal=<5:00) 

▪ 6 month: 10:43 

▪ 12 month: 7:30 

o On-scene time for STEMI patients:  

▪ 6 month: 21:13 

▪ 12 month: 18:40 

o Total number of trauma patients: 23 

o On-scene time for trauma patients: (Goal=<10:00) 

▪ 6 month= 11:04 

▪ 12 month= 10:54 

o Total number of cardiac arrests: 99 

o Total number of survivors: 7 

• Collaboration ongoing to help improve efficiency on the scene to get under our goal time for 

specific benchmarks. 

Conclusion: We are pleased with the first year's results operating under this service agreement.  

Information has been exchanged efficiently, and collaboration between AFD and GCA has improved.  We 

look forward to fine-tuning our operational teamwork as we strive to meet the healthcare needs of the 

citizens in the City of Appleton. 


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_SL Minutes 12-11-24
	0002_1_Kelly Arndt Application
	0002_2_Kelly Arndt Clerk Letter
	0002_3_Kelly Arndt PD Letter
	0002_4_Kelly Arndt Appeal Memo
	0002_5_UPDATE Operator License Renewal Application of Kelly Arndt
	0003_1_Katherine Neubert Application
	0003_2_Katherine Neubert Clerk's Letter
	0003_3_Katherine Neubert denial letter
	0004_1_Speakeasy Ultra Lounge Complaint Summons 12.2.24
	0004_2_Speakeasy Ultra Lounge Affidavit of Service 12.3.24
	0004_3_Alcohol Demerits and Revocations
	0004_4_Steven Wells APD Report 3.3.23 Redacted
	0004_5_Steven Wells Signed Criminal Complaint 11.30.23
	0004_6_JoC - Wisconsin V Steven Wells Jr 5.21.24
	0004_7_Council Minutes from 8.16.23
	0004_8_Speakeasy Stipulation 8.2023 Signed
	0004_9_Speakeasy Surrender Lic. Email 12-10-24
	0004_10_SPEAKEASY ULTRA LOUNGE REPORT 12.11.24
	0006_1_Delaire's.Alcohol.Class B_Beer_Reserve_Liquor.4.10.24.REDACTED
	0006_2_Delaire's Attachment
	0006_3_Documents distributed by Alder Van Zeeland 10.23.24
	0006_4_APD Delaire's letter to SL 11.27.24
	0006_5_OEO to Appleton City Clerk re Holding Licensing Hearing - Delaire's LLC
	0007_1_Play It Again Sports.Secondhand Article Renewal.12.10.24.REDACTED
	0008_1_Sacred Heart Church.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer_Wine.Winterfest.2.22.25.REDACTED
	0009_1_Building for Kids Childrens Museum.Alcohol.Temp B_Beer.Building for Grown Ups.2.1.25.REDACTED
	0010_1_11-05-24_Memo_GCA_Annual_Review
	0010_2_Shared_Services_and_Operating_Agreement_2024_Annual_Review



